
CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of Caribou will hold a City Council Meeting on 

Monday, May 18, 2020 in the Council Chambers located at 25 High Street, 6:00 pm. 

DUE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, THIS MEETING IS CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC BUT 

WILL BE BROADCAST VIA CABLE CHANNEL 1301 AND THE CITY’S YOUTUBE CHANNEL 
1. Roll Call 

2. Invocation / Inspirational Thought 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Public Forum (Comments can be submitted to the City Clerk (jfarrin@cariboumaine.org)  

prior to 5:30 pm on the day of the meeting to be read at the meeting. Comments must include 

the individuals name and address for the record) 

5. Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting – May 4, 2020 

6. Finances - April 2020 Report 

7. Bid Awards, Appointments & Recognitions 

8. New Business  

a. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Renewal of Rubbish Hauler Permit for City 

Sanitation 

b. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Par & Grill Liquor License Relocation 

c. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Acceptance of $20,000 FAA Grant for Airport 

d. Discussion Regarding City Use of Tax Acquired Property Located at 227 Limestone St 

e. Discussion Regarding Amendment to SynerGen Solar Agreement for Solar Project on the 

Ogren Rd Land Fill Property 

f. Introduction of Ordinance 03, 2020 Series to Amend the City Charter, Removing the 

Requirement that City Council Candidates be Current On Taxes. 

9. Old Business & Adoption of Ordinances and Resolutions 

a. Resolution 04-03-2020 Regarding Local Preference on Bids 

b. Introduction of Ordinance 01, 2020 Series to Amend the City Charter, Adjusting Budget 

Process Timeframe 

c. Introduction of Ordinance 02, 2020 Series to Amend the City Charter, Allowing the Council 

to Increase Annual Expense Budget 

10. Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

a. Homestead Tax Credit Training 

b. 2020 Expense Budget Review 

11. City Manager’s Report 

12. Reports by Staff and Appointed Officials 

a. Road Maintenance Program 

13. Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under Maine Revised Statutes, 

Title 1, §405.6) 

14. Next Meeting(s): June 1, 15, 29, July 27 

15. Adjournment 

If you are planning to attend this Public Meeting and, due to a disability, need assistance in understanding or 

participating in the meeting, please notify the City ten or more hours in advance and we will, within reason, 

provide what assistance may be required. 

Certificate of Mailing/Posting 

The undersigned duly appointed City official for the municipality of Caribou City hereby certifies that a copy of the 

foregoing Notice and Agenda was posted at City Offices and on-line in accordance with City noticing procedures. 

BY: ____________________________________ Jayne R. Farrin, City Clerk 

 

Pgs 2-5 

Pgs 6-23 

 

 

Pg 24 

Pg 25 

Pgs 26-44 

Pg 45 

Pgs 46-49 

 

Pgs 50-53 

 

 

Pg 54  

Pgs 55-59  

Pgs 60-61  

 

Pgs 62-64 

  

Pgs 65-67  

Pgs 68-76 

 

1

mailto:jfarrin@cariboumaine.org


May 4, 2020 

20-13 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a regular meeting Monday, May 4, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. in Council 

Chambers with the following members present: Mayor R. Mark Goughan, Deputy Mayor Thomas 

Ayer, Joan L. Theriault, Nicole L. Cote, Hugh A Kirkpatrick and Douglas C. Morrell and Jody R. 

Smith.  

Dennis L Marker, City Manager was present in Council Chambers. 

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, this meeting was closed to the public and was broadcasted via 

Spectrum, and Caribou’s YouTube Channel.   

Council Agenda Item #2: Invocation/Inspirational Thought 

Mayor Goughan read an invocation.  

Council Agenda Item#3: Pledge of Allegiance 

The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Council Agenda Item #4: Public Forum 

Comments were submitted to the City Clerk prior to 6:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting to be read at 

the meeting.  Comments must include the individuals name and address. 

• Gail Hagelstien:  Caribou Resident-Gail wrote in regarding the economic stimulus, raises for city 

employees, economic development and thanking the city employees for their work.  She is in 

opposition of the $40,000 stimulus and stated that the money could be used for other things.  Philip 

J. McDonough II: Caribou Resident - Email read by the City Clerk. 

• Philip wrote regarding the economic stimulus and his opposition.   

Council Agenda Item #5: Minutes 

City Council Regular Meeting – April 21, 2020 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by J. Theriault to accept the April 21,2020 Council minutes as 

presented.  (7 yes) So voted. 

Council Agenda Item #6: Finances 

Moved to 9 b. at the end of the meeting 

Council Agenda Item #7: Bid Awards, Appointments & Recognitions 

Country Asphalt Work: 

  Soderberg Construction:  $79.50 per ton 

  Trombley’s Construction:  $83.75 per ton 

In Town Asphalt Work:  

 Soderberg Construction:  $81.50 per ton 

 Trombley’s Construction:  $84.25 per ton 

 

2



May 4, 2020 

20-13 Pg. 2 

Moved by J. Theriault, Seconded by J. Smith to accept the two bids for Soderberg Construction.  (7 yes) 

So voted.  

Mayor Goughan suggested we have Public Works Director attend a meeting so that they can discuss the 

five-year paving plan. Discussion.  

Council Agenda Item #8: New Business & Adoption of Ordinances and Resolutions 

a. Resolution 04-03-2020 Regarding Local Bids Preference 

 No decisions have been made; this is being considered a first read. Discussion.  

b. Introduction of Ordinance 01, 2020 Series to Amend the City Charter, Adjusting Budget Process 

Timeframes  

 First Read.  An introduction was not made, Discussion. 

c. Introduction of Ordinance 02, 2020 Series to Amend the City Charter, Allowing the Council to 

increase the Annual Expense Budget Depending on Revenues  

 Discussion about current Charter  

 First Read.  An introduction was not made, Discussion.  

d. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Tax Acquired Properties Bid List  

 Discussion about lowering the minimum bids to get the properties moving faster.   

 A motion made by J. Smith, Seconded by J. Theriault was made to change the minimum bids to 

cover the cost of taxes, interest, fees, incurred cost to the city and monies owed to the CUD.   

 (7 yes) So voted.  

 Council would like to know about different programs or grants that may be available to help with 

the blight clean up. Council has asked to have dates added to the list of TA (Tax Acquired) 

properties. Current Date, current mil rate and a column showing how much it will cost the city to 

have the properties on the list.  

e. Discussion Regarding City Investments 

 Council is requesting an Investment Committee meeting Monday, May 11, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. in the 

Council Chambers.  Discussion 

Council Agenda Item #9: Old Business  

a.   Discussion and Possible Action Regarding 2020 Local Stimulus package 

 Council commended the employees for being able to cut back on the budget as they were asked.  

 A motion was made by N. Cote, Seconded by J. Smith to give current full-time employees $500 

and part-time employees $250 in gift cards that can be spent at Caribou Businesses of their choice. 

 Amendment was made by Mayor Goughan, Ms. Kalen Hill would have an honorary status from the 

mayor as being considered a Full-Time employee for 2019 and receive the $500 benefit.  Motion to 

accept the amendment made by N. Cote and Seconded by J. Smith to give current full-time 

employees $500 and part-time employees in gift cards that can be spent at Caribou Businesses of 

their choice and to give Kalen Hill a full-time benefit as she was a full-time employee until her 

doctor made her leave work due to an illness. (7 Yes) So voted. 

 Mayor Goughan read a press release regarding the stimulus package for the employees.   

b. Discussion Regarding Mil. Rate Reduction in 2020  

 

3



May 4, 2020 

20-13 Pg. 3 

 Council is discussing things that needs attention and how they would like to spend the monies and 

possibility of dropping the mil rate by 1.  Discussion. 

 They discussed, roads, fire department roof, extra pay for fire/EMT personnel during the pandemic 

and many other ideas of how to use the monies.  

Council Agenda Item #10: Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

 Councilor Morrell:  Would like to know where the Plowing RFQ process is at and more 

information about policies for purchase orders.  

 Deputy Mayor Ayer: Would like to know about the “Spit Screens” and when a possible opening 

date for City Office would be.  

   Manager Marker stated that we have a goal of opening May 18th, provided we have all 

precautions in place. 

   Would like to know an update on the Splash Pad.   

   Manager Marker stated that he has spoken with Gary at the Rec about the status and plans 

for the splash pad they are waiting on a design and hope to have it constructed this year. 

Council Agenda Item #11: City Manager’s Report 

Manager Marker reviewed his report dated May 1, 2020 

Councilor Kirkpatrick has requested that the manager report be changed. He would like to see a column 

added to the Administrative side with the topic of CD Status, and PO Process.  He suggested 

moving the Events & Marketing from the Economic side to the Administrative side, and lastly to 

split the Riverfront Development into three topics: 142 Lower Lyndon, MDOT Limestone Street 

Storage Facility, and Salmon for Maine/Hatchery. 

Council Agenda Item #12:  Reports by Staff and Appointed Officials 

The city clerk, Jayne Farrin explained absentee balloting for the July 14th Primary and Special 

Referendum election.  She also spoke about staffing preparations for the upcoming election.  

She also spoke regarding motor vehicle registration and how it can be done online or even by mail and 

that we are still assisting people with the process even though we are not open to the public, and 

how preparations are going for opening day.  

Council Agenda Item #13:  Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under 

Maine Revised Statutes, Title 1, §405.6) 

8:55 p.m. Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by H. Kirkpatrick to move to executive session to discuss 

Real Estate & Economic Development under MRSA §405(6)(C).  (7 yes) So Voted. 

10:20 p.m. Council returned from executive session. 

No action was taken.  

 

4



May 4, 2020 

20-13 Pg. 4 

Council Agenda Item #14: Next Meeting(s) 

May 18th and June 1st  

Council Agenda Item #15:  Adjournment 

Motion made by T. Ayer and seconded by J. Theriault to adjourn the meeting 

at 10:20 p.m. (7 yes) So voted. 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



3 Year Annual Average = $2,751,689

3 Yr Low 
(2019) 

$342,431

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

1/1/2017 2/1/2017 3/1/2017 4/1/2017 5/1/2017 6/1/2017 7/1/2017 8/1/2017 9/1/2017 10/1/2017 11/1/2017 12/1/2017

Caribou City 3 Year Cash Flow Status Report - as of May 8, 2020

2017 2018 2019 2020 Prior 3 Yr Avg

23



24



25



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   $20,000 Grant from FAA for Airport Operations 

DATE:  May 14, 2020 

 

 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM  

 

For Caribou to receive a $20,000 grant from the FAA, the Council must authorize receiving the 

funds.  

 

Under the Federal CARES Act, the FAA was given $10 Billion dollars to help airports during 

the COVID-19 pandemic. These funds are to be disbursed as 100% grant in 2020, meaning no 

matching funds are required from airport sponsors. According to the FAA,  

 

“This funding will support continuing operations and replace lost revenue 

resulting from the sharp decline in passenger traffic and other airport 

business due to the COVID-19 public health emergency. The funds are 

available for airport capital expenditures, airport operating expenses 

including payroll and utilities, and airport debt payments.” 

 
Staff have identified the following projects to which the funds may be applied: 

• The airport self-serving fuel terminal system is 20 years old and will not be supported by 

the manufacturer later this year. A price quoted for the upgraded system is $14,000 plus 

installation costs. This is an unanticipated capital maintenance cost. Having the fuel at the 

airport, the city generated over $27,000 in fuel sales last year compared to $14,450 of 

fuel purchased. Net revenues were captured into the general fund. 

• Maine DOT released an asphalt condition report in April. It indicates a portion of 

Caribou’s airport pavement needs to be rehabilitated in 2020. Their estimated cost for this 

work is $71,188. This maintenance project was anticipated, but not at the amount 

indicated. An RFP has been prepared for this work with bids due May 29, 2020. There is 

$78,500 set aside in airport reserves as matching funds for another major project, but 

these funds can be used for the pavement rehab work. 

 

The FAA has confirmed that either project would be eligible for use of the grant funds. 

 

Council Action Needed 

Authorize the City Manager to accept the $20,000 grant from the FAA, which will be used to 

offset airport operating expenses in 2020.  

 

 

A copy of the full grant literature is attached behind this memo. 

26



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 1 

 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Aviation 
Administration 

Airports Division 
New England Region 
Connecticut, Massachusetts, Maine, New 
Hampshire, Rhode Island, & Vermont 

FAA ANE-600 
1200 District Ave 
Burlington, MA 01803 

CARES Act Grant Transmittal Letter 

{{DateTime_es_:signer1:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}} 

Mr. Dennis Marker 
City Manager 
Re: Caribou Municipal Airport 
25 High Street 
Caribou, Maine 04736 

Dear Mr. Marker:  

Please find the following electronic CARES Act Grant Offer, Grant No. 3-23-0012-020-2020 for Caribou 
Municipal Airport. This letter outlines expectations for success. Please read and follow the instructions 
carefully. 

To properly enter into this agreement, you must do the following: 

a. The governing body must provide authority to execute the grant to the individual signing the grant; 
i.e. the sponsor’s authorized representative. 

b. The sponsor’s authorized representative must execute the grant, followed by the attorney’s 
certification, no later than July 1, 2020 in order for the grant to be valid. 

c. You may not make any modification to the text, terms or conditions of the grant offer. 

d. The grant offer must be electronically signed by the sponsor’s legal signatory authority and then the 
grant offer will be routed via email to the sponsor’s attorney. Once the attorney has electronically 
attested to the grant, an email with the executed grant will be sent to all parties. 

Subject to the requirements in 2 CFR § 200.305, each payment request for reimbursement under this 
grant must be made electronically via the Delphi eInvoicing System. Please see the attached Grant 
Agreement for more information regarding the use of this System. The terms and conditions of this 
agreement require you drawdown and expend these funds within four years. 

An airport sponsor may use these funds for any purpose for which airport revenues may be lawfully 
used. CARES grant recipients should follow the FAA’s Policy and Procedures Concerning the Use of 
Airport Revenues (“Revenue Use Policy”), 64 Federal Register 7696 (64 FR 7696), as amended by 78 
Federal Register 55330 (78 FR 55330). The Revenue Use Policy defines permitted uses of airport 
revenue. In addition to the detailed guidance in the Revenue Use Policy, the CARES Act states the funds 
may not be used for any purpose not related to the airport. 

With each payment request you are required to upload directly to Delphi: 

 An invoice summary, even if you only paid a single invoice, and 
 The documentation in support of each invoice covered in the payment request. 

For the final payment request, in addition to the requirement listed above for all payment requests, you 
are required to upload directly to Delphi: 

 A final financial report summarizing all of the costs incurred and reimbursed, and 

May 11, 2020

27



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 2 

 An SF-425, and 
 A narrative report. 

The narrative report will summarize the expenses covered by the CARES Act funds and state that all 
expenses were in accordance with the FAA’s Policy and Procedures Concerning the Use of Airport 
Revenues and incurred after January 20, 2020. 

As a condition of receiving Federal assistance under this award, you must comply with audit 
requirements as established under 2 CFR part 200. Subpart F requires non-Federal entities that expend 
$750,000 or more in Federal awards to conduct a single or program specific audit for that year. Note 
that this includes Federal expenditures made under other Federal-assistance programs. Please take 
appropriate and necessary action to assure your organization will comply with applicable audit 
requirements and standards.  

Once you have drawn down all funds and uploaded the required documents to Delphi, notify Julie 
Seltsam-Wilps by email that the grant is administratively and financially closed. Julie Seltsam-Wilps is 
readily available to assist you and your designated representative with the requirements stated herein. 
We sincerely value your cooperation in these efforts. 

Sincerely, 

{{Sig_es_:signer1:                        signature}}  

Gail Lattrell 
Director, Airports Division 
[ADO has discretion to delegate signature authority to Program Manager] 

Gail Lattrell (May 11, 2020)
Gail Lattrell

28

https://dotfaa.na1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA5WskKnptHtao6YtRrnOtP6_iPP5lB78N


 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 3 

  

 
U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Aviation 
Administration 

CARES ACT AIRPORT GRANTS AGREEMENT 

Part I - Offer 

Federal Award Offer Date {{DateTime_es_:signer1:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}} 

    

Airport/Planning Area Caribou Municipal Airport 

    

CARES Grant Number 3-23-0012-020-2020 

    

Unique Entity Identifier 060991452 

    

TO: City of Caribou, ME 

  (herein called the "Sponsor")  

    

FROM: The United States of America (acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein 
called the "FAA") 

  

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA a Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
(CARES Act or "the Act") Airports Grants Application (herein called the "Grant") dated April 29, 2020, for 
a grant of Federal funds at or associated with the Caribou Municipal Airport, which is included as part of 
this Grant Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has accepted the terms of FAA's Grant offer;  

WHEREAS, in consideration of the promises, representations and assurances provided by the Sponsor, 
the FAA has approved the Grant Application for the Caribou Municipal Airport, (herein called the 
"Grant") consisting of the following:  

This Grant is provided in accordance with the CARES Act, as described below, to provide eligible 
Sponsors with funding to help offset a decline in revenues arising from diminished airport operations 
and activities as a result of the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency. CARES Act Airport Grants amounts to 
specific airports are derived by legislative formula.  

The purpose of this Grant is to maintain safe and efficient airport operations. Funds provided under this 
Grant Agreement must only be used for purposes directly related to the airport. Such purposes can 
include the reimbursement of an airport’s operational and maintenance expenses or debt service 
payments. CARES Act Airport Grants may be used to reimburse airport operational and maintenance 
expenses directly related to Caribou Municipal Airport incurred no earlier than January 20, 2020. CARES 
Act Airport Grants also may be used to reimburse a Sponsor’s payment of debt service where such 
payments occur on or after April 14, 2020. Funds provided under the Grant will be governed by the 
same principles that govern “airport revenue.” New airport development projects may not be funded 

May 11, 2020

29



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 4 

with this Grant unless and until the Grant Agreement is amended or superseded by a subsequent 
agreement that addresses and authorizes the use of funds for the airport development project.  

NOW THEREFORE, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the CARES Act, Public Law 116-136, 
the representations contained in the Grant Application, and in consideration of, (a) the Sponsor’s 
acceptance of this Offer; and, (b) the benefits to accrue to the United States and the public from the 
accomplishment of the Grant and in compliance with the conditions as herein provided,  

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY 
OFFERS AND AGREES to pay 100% percent of the allowable costs incurred as a result of and in 
accordance with this Grant Agreement.  

Assistance Listings Number (Formerly CFDA Number): 20.106  

This Offer is made on and SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

CONDITIONS 

1. Maximum Obligation. The maximum obligation of the United States payable under this Offer is 
$20,000.  

2. Period of Performance. The period of performance shall commence on the date the Sponsor 
formally accepts this agreement. The end date of the period of performance is 4 years (1,460 
calendar days) from the date of acceptance.  

The Sponsor may only charge allowable costs for obligations incurred prior to the end date of the 
period of performance (2 CFR § 200.309). Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the 
Sponsor must submit all Grant closeout documentation and liquidate (pay-off) all obligations 
incurred under this award no later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of 
performance (2 CFR § 200.343). 

The period of performance end date shall not affect, relieve or reduce Sponsor obligations and 
assurances that extend beyond the closeout of this Grant Agreement. 

3. Unallowable Costs. The Sponsor shall not seek reimbursement for any costs that the FAA has 
determined to be unallowable under the CARES Act.  

4. Indirect Costs - Sponsor. The Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying the 
indirect cost rate identified in the Grant Application as accepted by the FAA, to allowable costs for 
Sponsor direct salaries and wages only.  

5. Final Federal Share of Costs. The United States' share of allowable Grant costs will be 100%.  

6. Completing the Grant without Delay and in Conformance with Requirements. The Sponsor must 
carry out and complete the Grant without undue delays and in accordance with this Grant 
Agreement, the CARES Act, and the regulations, policies, standards and procedures of the Secretary 
of Transportation (“Secretary”). Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.308, the Sponsor agrees to report to the 
FAA any disengagement from funding eligible expenses under the Grant that exceeds three months 
and request prior approval from FAA. The report must include a reason for the stoppage. The 
Sponsor agrees to comply with the attached assurances, which are part of this agreement and any 
addendum that may be attached hereto at a later date by mutual consent.  

7. Amendments or Withdrawals before Grant Acceptance. The FAA reserves the right to amend or 
withdraw this offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the Sponsor.  

30



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 5 

8. Offer Expiration Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay any 
part of the costs unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or before July 1, 2020, or 
such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.  

9. Improper Use of Federal Funds. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to 
recover Federal funds spent fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal antitrust statutes, or 
misused in any other manner, including uses that violate this Grant Agreement, the CARES Act or 
other provision of applicable law. For the purposes of this Grant Agreement, the term “Federal 
funds” means funds however used or dispersed by the Sponsor, that were originally paid pursuant 
to this or any other Federal grant agreement(s). The Sponsor must return the recovered Federal 
share, including funds recovered by settlement, order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The Sponsor 
must furnish to the Secretary, upon request, all documents and records pertaining to the 
determination of the amount of the Federal share or to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or 
other efforts taken to recover such funds. All settlements or other final positions of the Sponsor, in 
court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such Federal share require advance approval by the 
Secretary.  

10. United States Not Liable for Damage or Injury. The United States is not responsible or liable for 
damage to property or injury to persons which may arise from, or relate to this Grant Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, any action taken by a Sponsor related to or arising from, directly or 
indirectly, this Grant Agreement.  

11. System for Award Management (SAM) Registration And Universal Identifier. Unless the Sponsor is 
exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR § 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of 
its information in the SAM until the Sponsor submits the final financial report required under this 
Grant, or receives the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review and 
update the information at least annually after the initial registration and more frequently if required 
by changes in information or another award term. Additional information about registration 
procedures may be found at the SAM website (currently at http://www.sam.gov).  

12. Electronic Grant Payment(s). Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each 
payment request under this agreement electronically via the Delphi eInvoicing System for 
Department of Transportation (DOT) Financial Assistance Awardees.  

13. Financial Reporting and Payment Requirements. The Sponsor will comply with all Federal financial 
reporting requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate 
reports.  

14. Buy American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, the Sponsor will not acquire or 
permit any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel or manufactured products produced 
outside the United States to be used for any expense for which funds are provided under this Grant. 
The Sponsor will include a provision implementing applicable Buy American statutory and 
regulatory requirements in all contracts related to this Grant Agreement.  

15. Audits for Private Sponsors. When the period of performance has ended, the Sponsor must provide 
a copy of an audit of this Grant prepared in accordance with accepted standard audit practices, such 
audit to be submitted to the applicable Airports District Office.  

16. Audits for Public Sponsors. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in 
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the 
Federal Audit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System at 
http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. Upon request of the FAA, the Sponsor shall provide one copy 
of the completed audit to the FAA.  

31



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 6 

17. Suspension or Debarment. When entering into a “covered transaction” as defined by 2 CFR § 
180.200, the Sponsor must:  

A. Verify the non-federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:  

1. Checking the excluded parties list system (EPLS) as maintained within the System for 
Award Management (SAM) to determine if the non-federal entity is excluded or 
disqualified; or 

2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-federal entity attesting the entity is not 
excluded or disqualified from participating; or 

3. Adding a clause or condition to covered transactions attesting the individual or firm is not 
excluded or disqualified from participating. 

B. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when entering into lower-tier 
transactions (e.g. sub-contracts). 

C. Immediately disclose to the FAA whenever the Sponsor (1) learns the Sponsor has entered into 
a covered transaction with an ineligible entity, or (2) suspends or debars a contractor, person, 
or entity. 

18. Ban on Texting While Driving.  

A. In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging 
While Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving, 
December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is encouraged to:  

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted 
drivers including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work 
for, or on behalf of, the Federal government, including work relating to this Grant or 
subgrant. 

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the 
business, such as:  

a. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to 
prohibit text messaging while driving; and 

b. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks 
associated with texting while driving. 

B. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in all 
subgrants, contracts and subcontracts. 

19. Trafficking in Persons.  

A. You as the recipient, your employees, subrecipients under this award, and subrecipients’ 
employees may not –  

1. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is 
in effect; 

2. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or 

3. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award. 

B. The FAA as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without 
penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity –  

1. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph A of this award term; or 

32



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 7 

2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to terminate the 
award to have violated a prohibition in paragraph A.1 of this award term through conduct 
that is either –  

a. Associated with performance under this award; or 

b. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the 
conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, “OMB 
Guidelines to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and Suspension 
(Nonprocurement),”as implemented by the FAA at 2 CFR Part 1200. 

3. You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source alleging a 
violation of a prohibition in paragraph A during this award term. 

4. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph A of this section:  

a. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as 
amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104(g)), and 

b. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to the FAA 
under this award. 

20. Employee Protection from Reprisal.  

A. Prohibition of Reprisals —  

1. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, an employee of a grantee or subgrantee may not be 
discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for disclosing to a 
person or body described in sub-paragraph (A)(2), information that the employee 
reasonably believes is evidence of:  

a.    Gross mismanagement of a Federal grant; 
b.    Gross waste of Federal funds; 
c.    An abuse of authority relating to implementation or use of Federal funds; 
d.    A substantial and specific danger to public health or safety; or 
e.    A violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal grant. 

2. Persons and bodies covered: The persons and bodies to which a disclosure by an employee 
is covered are as follows:  

a.    A member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress; 
b.    An Inspector General; 
c.    The Government Accountability Office; 
d.    A Federal office or employee responsible for oversight of a grant program; 
e.    A court or grand jury; 
f.    A management office of the grantee or subgrantee; or 
g.    A Federal or State regulatory enforcement agency. 

3. Submission of Complaint — A person who believes that they have been subjected to a 
reprisal prohibited by paragraph A of this grant term may submit a complaint regarding the 
reprisal to the Office of Inspector General (OIG) for the U.S. Department of Transportation. 

4. Time Limitation for Submittal of a Complaint — A complaint may not be brought under this 
subsection more than three years after the date on which the alleged reprisal took place. 

5. Required Actions of the Inspector General — Actions, limitations, and exceptions of the 
Inspector General’s office are established under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(b). 

33



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 8 

6. Assumption of Rights to Civil Remedy — Upon receipt of an explanation of a decision not 
to conduct or continue an investigation by the Office of Inspector General, the person 
submitting a complaint assumes the right to a civil remedy under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(c). 

21. Limitations. Nothing provided herein shall be construed to limit, cancel, annul, or modify the terms 
of any Federal grant agreement(s), including all terms and assurances related thereto, that have 
been entered into by the Sponsor and the FAA prior to the date of this Grant Agreement.  

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. ARFF and SRE Equipment and Vehicles. The Sponsor agrees that it will:  

A. House and maintain the equipment in a state of operational readiness on and for the airport; 

B. Provide the necessary staffing and training to maintain and operate the vehicle and equipment; 

C. Restrict the vehicle to on-airport use only; 

D. Restrict the vehicle to the use for which it was intended; and 

E. Amend the Airport Emergency Plan and/or Snow and Ice Control Plan to reflect the acquisition 
of a vehicle and equipment. 

2. Equipment or Vehicle Replacement. The Sponsor agrees that it will treat the proceeds from the 
trade-in or sale of equipment being replaced with these funds as airport revenue.  

3. Off-Airport Storage of ARFF Vehicle. The Sponsor agrees that it will:  

A. House and maintain the vehicle in a state of operational readiness for the airport; 

B. Provide the necessary staffing and training to maintain and operate the vehicle; 

C. Restrict the vehicle to airport use only; 

D. Amend the Airport Emergency Plan to reflect the acquisition of the vehicle; 

E. Within 60 days, execute an agreement with local government including the above provisions 
and a provision that violation of said agreement could require repayment of Grant funding; and 

F. Submit a copy of the executed agreement to the FAA. 

4. Equipment Acquisition. The Sponsor agrees that it will maintain Sponsor-owned and -operated 
equipment and use for purposes directly related to the airport.  

5. Utilities Proration. For purposes of computing the United States’ share of the allowable airport 
operations and maintenance costs, the allowable cost of utilities incurred by the Sponsor to operate 
and maintain airport(s) included in the Grant must not exceed the percent attributable to the 
capital or operating costs of the airport.  

6. Utility Relocation in Grant. The Sponsor understands and agrees that:  

A. The United States will not participate in the cost of any utility relocation unless and until the 
Sponsor has submitted evidence satisfactory to the FAA that the Sponsor is legally responsible 
for payment of such costs; 

B. FAA participation is limited to those utilities located on-airport or off-airport only where the 
Sponsor has an easement for the utility; and 

C. The utilities must serve a purpose directly related to the Airport. 

34



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 9 

The Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Grant Application 
incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor, as hereinafter 
provided, and this Offer and Acceptance shall comprise a Grant Agreement, as provided by the CARES 
Act, constituting the contractual obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor with 
respect to the accomplishment of the Grant and compliance with the assurances and conditions as 
provided herein. Such Grant Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor’s acceptance of this 
Offer.  

  

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 

{{Sig_es_:signer1:                        signature}} 

(Signature) 

{{N_es_:signer1:                            fullname}} 

(Typed Name) 

{{*Ttl_es_:signer1:                                 title}} 

(Title of FAA Official) 
 

Gail Lattrell (May 11, 2020)
Gail Lattrell

Director

Gail Lattrell

35

https://dotfaa.na1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA5WskKnptHtao6YtRrnOtP6_iPP5lB78N


 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 10 

  

Part II - Acceptance 

The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, 
covenants, and agreements contained in the Grant Application and incorporated materials referred to in 
the foregoing Offer under Part II of this Agreement, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such 
acceptance agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions in this Offer and in the Grant 
Application.  

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Dated {{DateTime_es_:signer2:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}}  

  

 
City of Caribou, ME 

 (Name of Sponsor) 

 

{{Sig_es_:signer2:                        signature}} 

 (Signature of Sponsor's Authorized Official) 

By: {{N_es_:signer2:                            fullname}} 
 (Typed Name of Sponsor's Authorized Official) 

Title: {{*Ttl_es_:signer2:                                 title}} 
 (Title of Sponsor's Authorized Official) 

 

36



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 11 

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY 

I, {{N_es_:signer3:                            fullname}}, acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify: 

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the 
laws of the State of __Maine__. Further, I have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the 
actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative has been duly authorized and that 
the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said State 
and the CARES Act. The Sponsor understands funding made available under this Grant Agreement may 
only be used to reimburse for airport operational and maintenance expenses, and debt service 
payments. The Sponsor further understands it may submit a separate request to use funds for new 
airport/project development purposes, subject to additional terms, conditions, and assurances. Further, 
it is my opinion that the said Grant Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor 
in accordance with the terms thereof. 

Dated at {{DateTime_es_:signer3:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}}  

 By: {{Sig_es_:signer3:                        signature}} 

 (Signature of Sponsor's Attorney) 
 

37



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 12 

  

CARES ACT ASSURANCES 
AIRPORT SPONSORS 

A. General. 

1. These assurances are required to be submitted as part of the application by sponsors 
requesting funds under the provisions of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
of 2020 (CARES Act or “the Act”), Public Law 116-136. As used herein, the term "public agency 
sponsor" means a public agency with control of a public-use airport; the term "private sponsor" 
means a private owner of a public-use airport; and the term "sponsor" includes both public 
agency sponsors and private sponsors. 

2. Upon acceptance of this Grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are incorporated into and 
become part of this Grant Agreement. 

B. Sponsor Certification. 

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this Grant that: 

It will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, 
guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of Federal 
funds for this Grant including but not limited to the following: 

FEDERAL LEGISLATION 

a. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act — 29 U.S.C. 201, et seq. 

b. Hatch Act — 5 U.S.C. 1501, et seq. 

c. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 Title 42 U.S.C. 
4601, et seq. 

d. National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 — Section 106 - 16 U.S.C. 470(f). 

e. Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 — 16 U.S.C. 469 through 469c. 

f. Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act — 25 U.S.C. Section 3001, et seq. 

g. Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended. 

h. Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 93-205, as amended. 

i. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 — Section 102(a) - 42 U.S.C. 4012a. 

j. Title 49, U.S.C., Section 303, (formerly known as Section 4(f)). 

k. Rehabilitation Act of 1973 — 29 U.S.C. 794. 

l. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin). 

m. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.), prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability). 

n. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 — 42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq. 

o. American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended. 

p. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 — 42 U.S.C. 4151, et seq. 

q. Power plant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 — Section 403- 2 U.S.C. 8373. 

38



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 13 

r. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act — 40 U.S.C. 327, et seq. 

s. Copeland Anti-kickback Act — 18 U.S.C. 874.1. 

t. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 — 42 U.S.C. 4321, et seq. 

u. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended. 

v. Single Audit Act of 1984 — 31 U.S.C. 7501, et seq. 

w. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 — 41 U.S.C. 702 through 706. 

x. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended (Pub. L. 109-282, 
as amended by section 6202 of Pub. L. 110-252). 

EXECUTIVE ORDERS 

a. Executive Order 11246 – Equal Employment Opportunity 

b. Executive Order 11990 – Protection of Wetlands 

c. Executive Order 11998 – Flood Plain Management 

d. Executive Order 12372 – Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 

e. Executive Order 12699 – Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New Building 
Construction 

f. Executive Order 12898 – Environmental Justice 

g. Executive Order 13788 – Buy American and Hire American 

h. Executive Order 13858 – Strengthening Buy-American Preferences for Infrastructure Projects 

FEDERAL REGULATIONS 

a. 2 CFR Part 180 – OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension 
(Nonprocurement). 

b. 2 CFR Part 200 – Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards.  

c. 2 CFR Part 1200 – Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment. 

d. 28 CFR Part 35 – Discrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government 
Services. 

e. 28 CFR § 50.3 – U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964. 

f. 29 CFR Part 1 – Procedures for predetermination of wage rates. 

g. 29 CFR Part 3 – Contractors and subcontractors on public building or public work financed in 
whole or part by loans or grants from the United States. 

h. 29 CFR Part 5 – Labor standards provisions applicable to contracts covering Federally financed 
and assisted construction (also labor standards provisions applicable to non-construction 
contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act). 

i. 41 CFR Part 60 – Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and Federally assisted contracting requirements). 

j. 49 CFR Part 20 – New restrictions on lobbying. 

39



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 14 

k. 49 CFR Part 21 – Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of 
Transportation - effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

l. 49 CFR Part 26 – Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of 
Transportation Program .49 CFR Part 27 — Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in 
Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance. 

m. 49 CFR Part 28 – Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or 
Activities conducted by the Department of Transportation. 

n. 49 CFR Part 30 – Denial of public works contracts to suppliers of goods and services of countries 
that deny procurement market access to U.S. contractors. 

o. 49 CFR Part 32 – Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial 
Assistance). 

p. 49 CFR Part 37 – Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA). 

q. 49 CFR Part 41 – Seismic safety of Federal and Federally assisted or regulated new building 
construction. 

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES 

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulations, 
or circulars are incorporated by reference in this Grant Agreement. 

1. Purpose Directly Related to the Airport 

It certifies that the reimbursement sought is for a purpose directly related to the airport. 

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor. 

a. Public Agency Sponsor: 

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant, and to finance and carry out the proposed grant; 
that an official decision has been made by the applicant’s governing body authorizing the filing 
of the application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing 
and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in 
connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may be required. 

b. Private Sponsor: 

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant and to finance and carry out the proposed Grant 
and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement. It shall 
designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize that person to file 
this application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in 
connection with this application; and to provide such additional information as may be 
required. 

3. Good Title. 

It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the Secretary, to the 
landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance satisfactory to the Secretary that 
good title will be acquired. 

4. Preserving Rights and Powers. 

a. It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and 
powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this Grant 

40



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 15 

Agreement without the written approval of the Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire, 
extinguish, or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would interfere 
with such performance by the sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the 
Secretary. 

b. If the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary to ensure that 
the airport will continue to function as a public-use airport in accordance with this Grant 
Agreement. 

c. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any agency or 
person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the sponsor will reserve 
sufficient rights and authority to insure that the airport will be operated and maintained in 
accordance Title 49, United States Code, the regulations, and the terms and conditions of this 
Grant Agreement. 

5. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements. 

a. It shall keep all Grant accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by 
the recipient of the proceeds of this Grant, the total cost of the Grant in connection with which 
this Grant is given or used, and the amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the Grant 
supplied by other sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the Grant. The 
accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that will facilitate 
an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984. 

b. It shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the United States, or 
any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and examination, any 
books, documents, papers, and records of the recipient that are pertinent to this Grant. The 
Secretary may require that an appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. In any case in 
which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition of 
the proceeds of a Grant or relating to the Grant in connection with which this Grant was given 
or used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the Comptroller General of the United 
States not later than six (6) months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was 
made. 

6. Exclusive Rights. 

The sponsor shall not grant an exclusive right to use an air navigation facility on which this Grant 
has been expended. However, providing services at an airport by only one fixed-based operator is 
not an exclusive right if— 

a. it is unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than one fixed-based operator 
to provide the services; and 

b. allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide the services requires a reduction in 
space leased under an agreement existing on September 3, 1982, between the operator and 
the airport. 

7. Airport Revenues. 

This Grant shall be available for any purpose for which airport revenues may lawfully be used. 
CARES Act Grant funds provided under this Grant Agreement will only be expended for the capital 
or operating costs of the airport; the local airport system; or other local facilities which are owned 
or operated by the owner or operator of the airport(s) subject to this agreement and all applicable 
addendums. 

41



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 16 

8. Reports and Inspections. 

It will: 

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports as the Secretary 
may reasonably request and make such reports available to the public; make available to the 
public at reasonable times and places a report of the airport budget in a format prescribed by 
the Secretary; 

b. in a format and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and make available 
to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report listing in detail: 

1. all amounts paid by the airport to any other unit of government and the purposes for 
which each such payment was made; and 

2. all services and property provided by the airport to other units of government and the 
amount of compensation received for provision of each such service and property. 

9. Civil Rights. 

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States shall, on 
the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in any 
activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds received from this Grant. 

a. Using the definitions of activity, facility, and program as found and defined in §§ 21.23 (b) and 
21.23 (e) of 49 CFR Part 21, the sponsor will facilitate all programs, operate all facilities, or 
conduct all programs in compliance with all non-discrimination requirements imposed by or 
pursuant to these assurances. 

b. Applicability 

1. Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or other Federal assistance) 
for any of the sponsor’s program or activities, these requirements extend to all of the 
sponsor’s programs and activities. 

2. Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance to construct, 
expand, renovate, remodel, alter, or acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance 
extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith. 

3. Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance in 
the form of, or for the acquisition of, real property or an interest in real property, the 
assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property. 

c. Duration 

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during which Federal 
financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is 
to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or 
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any 
transferee for the longer of the following periods: 

1. So long as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving the provision 
of similar services or benefits; or 

2. So long as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the property. 

42



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 17 

Required Solicitation Language. It will include the following notification in all solicitations for 
bids, Requests for Proposals for work, or material under this Grant and in all proposals for 
agreements, including airport concessions, regardless of funding source: 

“The City of Caribou, ME, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all 
bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this 
advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises and airport concession disadvantaged 
business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this 
invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin 
in consideration for an award.” 

d. Required Contract Provisions. 

1. It will insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with the acts and 
regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT, and 
incorporating the acts and regulations into the contracts by reference in every contract or 
agreement subject to the non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT 
acts and regulations. 

2. It will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities in every contract that is 
subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations. 

3. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant running with the land, in 
any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property, 
structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponsor. 

4. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, creed, sex, age, or handicap as a covenant running with the 
land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits, or similar instruments entered into by 
the sponsor with other parties: 

A. For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the 
applicable activity, grant, or program; and 

B. For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property 
acquired or improved under the applicable activity, grant, or program. 

e. It will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the 
Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, 
contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other 
participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all 
requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the regulations, and this assurance. 

f. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any 
matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance. 

10. Foreign Market Restrictions. 

It will not allow funds provided under this Grant to be used to fund any activity that uses any 
product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country is listed by 
the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and equitable market opportunities for 
products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction. 

43



 3-23-0012-020-2020 

 18 

11. Acquisition Thresholds. 

The FAA deems equipment to mean tangible personal property having a useful life greater than one 
year and a per-unit acquisition cost equal to or greater than $5,000. Procurements by micro-
purchase means the acquisition of goods or services for which the aggregate dollar amount does 
not exceed $10,000. Procurement by small purchase procedures means those relatively simple and 
informal procurement methods for securing goods or services that do not exceed the $250,000 
threshold for simplified acquisitions. 

 3-23-0012-020-2020 
 18 
 18 

 

44



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   Use of Tax Acquired Property at 227 Limestone Street 

DATE:  May 14, 2020 

 

 

DISCUSSION ONLY ITEM  

 

During the previous Council meeting, the City Council approved a list of tax acquired properties 

to be posted for public bid. One of those is a 1,900 square foot building that was tax acquired in 

2018. The building sits on lands owned by MDOT with authorization from the state via lease 

agreement.  

 

Chief Michael Gahagan is requesting that the Council consider maintaining ownership of the 

subject building. The purpose for this is to consolidate multiple storage locations for public 

safety equipment. 

 

If the Council is willing to consider this a new agreement will need to be worked out with 

MDOT and taxes owed on the property will need to be abated. Current tax on books is $982.44. 

 

 

45



 

 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  

 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   $20,000 Grant from FAA for Airport Operations 

DATE:  May 14, 2020 

 

 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM  

 

SynerGen Solar, who was authorized by the Council to investigate the possibility of installing a 

solar power array on the City’s Ogren landfill site, is requesting an amendment to their lease 

agreement with the City. The current agreement indicates that they will pay the City a lump sum 

of $15,000 each year. The contract anticipates using a 30-acre site, which equates to $500/acre 

per year. SynerGen is asking that the lease amount be changed to $500/acre per year instead 

of the $15,000 per year sum. SynerGen recently completed a wetland delineation study and 

found that not more than 10 acres of the property is suitable for their project. They have already 

engaged the adjacent property owner about using a portion of their property to develop the 

critical mass of solar arrays they desire. 

 

The lease is not currently in effect. The developer is within their 12-month investigation period 

but must submit the final lease terms to the state to qualify for benefits needed to make the 

project viable.  
 

Council Action Requested 

Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the SynerGen Solar contract, which sets 

the rental rate at $500/acre with the acreage to be determined through the city’s site design 

review process.  

 

 

A copy of the amendment request is attached behind this memo. 

46



1 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO 

OPTION AGREEMENT 

This First Amendment to Option Agreement (this “Amendment”) is entered into by 
and between SYNERGEN SOLAR, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, having its 
principal address at 600 Reisterstown Road, Suite 310, Pikesville, MD 21208 (the “Grantee”), 
and the CITY OF CARIBOU, a city in Aroostook County, Maine with an address of 25 High 
Street, Caribou, ME 04736 (the “Owner”), as of May 12, 2020 (the “Effective Date”), with 
reference to the Recitals below. 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, Grantee and Owner entered into an Option for the Lease of Land 
(the “Option Agreement”) dated as of January 27, 2020 (the “Agreement”); and 

B. WHEREAS, Grantee and Owner desire to revise certain terms of the Agreement, 
all as further provided in this Amendment.   

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals, the mutual promises and 
covenants hereinafter set forth, and other valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
confirmed, Grantee and Owner agree as follows: 

1. Interpretation.  Except as amended by this Amendment, the Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect.  In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Amendment and 
the Agreement, this Amendment shall control.  Terms with initial capital letters are defined terms 
which shall have the respective meanings given them in the Agreement, unless the context of this 
Amendment requires otherwise. 

2. Amendment to Recitals. 

Recitals 3 – 4 (of which two Recitals were both erroneously numbered as Recital 3) of the 
Agreement are hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  

3. Grantee wishes to lease approximately 8 acres of the Property as depicted on 
Exhibit B, together with all appurtenant rights and easements (the “Premises”). 

4. Grantee may elect to lease the Premises and to construct and operate a solar 
(PV) energy generation facility (the “Project”) on the Premises if Grantee’s 
assessment of the feasibility of interconnecting, constructing and operating such a 
project is favorable, in Grantee’s sole discretion. 

5. Grantee wishes to acquire an option to preserve its opportunity to lease the 
Premises, and Owner wishes to grant Grantee such an option. 

47



2 

3. Amendment to Section 2 – Lease Rate. 

Section 2 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  

2. Lease Rate.  Owner and Grantee agree to an annual lease rate of Five Hundred 
Dollars ($500) per acre for the Premises, with a term of Twenty (20) years.  
Grantee may extend the term of the lease for four (4) additional periods of Five 
(5) years each by providing Ninety (90) days’ advance notice to Owner.

4. Governing Law.  This Amendment shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Maine.   

5. Counterpart Originals.  This Amendment is confidential and, except as may be required 
by applicable Law, neither the fact that the Parties entered into this Amendment, nor the 
information arising out of or in connection with this Amendment, may be disclosed to a third 
party (except for financing purposes), without the other Party’s prior written consent. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

48



3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment by their authorized 
representatives as of the Effective Date. 

GRANTEE: 

SYNERGEN SOLAR, LLC 

By:   

Name: Hillel Halberstam 

Title: Managing Member 

OWNER: 

CITY OF CARIBOU 

By: _____________________

Name: Dennis L. Marker 

Title: City Manager 

49



Introduced by Councilor _____________________  

on _________, ____ 2020 

 

ORDINANCE No. 03, 2020 Series 

City of Caribou 

County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 

 

An Ordinance to Amend the City Charter Allowing City Councilors to have Unpaid Tax Balances 

Short Title: An Ordinance Allowing City Councilors to have Unpaid Tax Balances 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Caribou is a Local Unit of Government under the State of Maine and is 

granted home rule authority under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §3001; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Charter, which was instituted on February 23, 1967 and has been amended 

from time to time by a vote of the city’s residents as allowed under Maine Revised Statutes, 

Title 30-A, provides eligibility criteria for City Council members; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that citizens should reconsider the criteria that City 

Council eligibility to serve be partially based on payment of taxes, and  
 

WHEREAS, any ordinance seeking to amend the charter must be approved by a vote of the 

citizens at the next general election.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of Maine, pursuant 

to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11 and Maine Revised Statutes, 

Title 30-A, §2104, presents for consideration of the voters, the following change to the Charter. 

 

Section I: Charter Revisions 

 

A. Section 2.01(b) regarding eligibility for City Council is amended as follows: (underlined text 

is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

(b) Eligibility. Only qualified voters of the City, who are current for all annual personal and 

real property taxes due to the city on or before December 31st of the previous year, shall be 

eligible to hold the office of Councilor. 

 

B. Section 2.06(b) regarding City Councilor forfeiture of office is amended as follows: 

(underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

(b)  Forfeiture of office. A Councilor shall forfeit office if he/she:  

(1)  lacks at any time during term of office any qualification for the office prescribed by 

this Charter or by law,  

50



(2)  violates any provisions of the Charter,  

(3) is convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude,  

(4)  fails to attend three consecutive regular meetings of the Council without being 

excused by the Council,  

(5)  or willfully discloses information discussed, observed or perused during any 

executive session, properly called and voted upon by a majority vote of the Council,  

(6)  fails to pay all annual personal and real property taxes on or before December 31st 

of the previous year,  

(76)  fails to attend, in a calendar year, at least 80% of budget workshop meetings and 

meeting of committees to which they have been assigned, unless excused by the 

council. 

 

Section II. Severability 

If any part of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for 
any reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, 
such judgment shall not affect, impair of invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the 
application thereof to other persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to 
the section, subdivision, sentence or part of the section and the persons and circumstances 
directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered.  It is 
hereby declared to be the intent of the City Council that this section would have been adopted if 
such invalid section, provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a section or application had not 
been included. 
 

Section IV. Posting and Effective Date 

This ordinance, being introduced on ________________, 2020 and a public hearing being held 

on _________________, 2020 was duly passed by the City Council of the City of Caribou, 

Maine, this _____day of __________________ 2020. This ordinance shall become effective 

November 15th if passed by vote of the citizens during the November 2020 election.  

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor   Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Jody Smith, Councilor    Nicole L. Cote, Councilor 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Hugh Kirkpatrick, Councilor   Doug Morrell, Councilor 

 

______________________________   

Joan Theriault, Councilor  

        Attest:______________________________ 

Jayne R. Farrin, City Clerk 

51



I would like to thank each councilor for their time and effort that they put forward 

in helping make Caribou a better place. Every city councilor when they were a 

candidate expressed (to paraphrase) that one major issue facing Caribou was that 

of more growth was needed to make Caribou more sustainable. This resolve of 

more growth is not unique to just Caribou but I would state, to all of Northern 

Maine. 

We may have different solutions to achieve this formidable task (a major reason 

for having elections) but this needed uptick in growth can only be accomplished 

with civil discussion among people of diverse opinions, from different 

backgrounds with their own notable life experiences. At the end of such discussion 

the majority opinion is the path the community or region should travel. As time 

goes forward results should judge whether that path was correct. Another reason 

for having elections is to change that course, modify that path in hopes to have 

better results in achieving the goals of the community. 

This body, the Caribou City Council, should be a representative of the diverse 

community we proudly hope to grow and prosper with together. People that are 

college educated along with those that are educated through the school of hard 

knocks. Both men and women, young and old, black, white and purple, citizens 

that live in rural Caribou and those that live in urban Caribou should all have the 

ability to place their name on the ballet from which this diverse body can be 

formed. The fact that any one candidate brings troubling issues for one electorate, 

could bring a positive point of experience in solving the growth issue within the 

community, to another electorate. The decision on that individual candidate can be 

considered at the election booth. 

This country once had a blanket stipulation that an individual had to own land in 

order to vote and another stipulation was that only men could vote. Luckily our 

country realized how discriminatory these requirements were, not only to the 

individuals but to the country, and eliminated them. This allowed the people to 

express their opinion at the ballet box based on the individual candidate and 

rebuffed the blanketing of a whole group of people.  

The Caribou city charter has such a blanketing clause. Citizens that do not have 

their taxes paid on time are not qualified to hold the position on the city council.   

52



This clause takes a group of citizens and blankets them into one mold and 

prejudges their abilities. The reason a pre-election campaign is so important, such 

as the Caribou candidate’s forum, is to allow the voters to judge the individual, on 

merits both pro and con, and thus create a council that is diverse and representative 

of the community. A diverse council that brings to the table different points of 

opinion in solving the issues the community would like to see resolved.  

There are some non-land owners that I would not voter for, not because they don’t 

own land but because I do not believe in their philosophy. There are women I 

would not vote for, not because they are women but because I do not believe in 

their philosophy of governance. You can choose not to vote for a candidate 

because they do not have their taxes paid on time, but a blanket clause in the 

charter takes away from other individuals who would like to vote for that candidate 

whose philosophy they do support. This clause in the charter is in my opinion the 

result of small town politics. This clause in the charter in my opinion has a feel of 

discrimination.  

I am going to introduce a motion to the council to remove this clause from the city 

charter in hopes to garner unanimous support. The city charter is our community’s 

foundation. This clause is a flaw in this foundation. Ask any home builder, the 

most important part of home construction is a well-built foundation. Gloria and I 

are lucky enough to have daughters and their families move back and make not 

only the farm but Caribou their home. As we try to build the farm in hopes of 

sustaining four families we have made some mistakes and as I tell them, the worse 

thing we can do is not the mistake but not admitting a mistake was made. 

Sometimes you have to back-up, correct the issue and move forward to achieve a 

positive goal. Ask any home builder who wants a straight roof line and didn’t 

resolve the mistake on the foundation.      From a simple farmer’s point of view. 

53



 

 

 

 

Resolution 04-03-2020 

A Resolution of the Caribou City Council  

Adopting a Local Preference Standard for Bid Submittals 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Caribou recognizes the importance of being good stewards of public 
dollars; and  
 
WHEREAS, procurement of goods and services should maximize value by balancing price, quality and 
performance through processes that are transparent and impartial; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Caribou has many businesses that can provide goods and services equal to non-
local businesses, but may be at a competitive disadvantage due to location from major economic centers, 
supply of materials or other economically beneficial facets of commerce; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Caribou desires to give preferential consideration to local businesses that can 
provide equivalent goods and services compared to non-local vendors on city bid requests. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CARIBOU CITY COUNCIL, that the City 
Manager, acting as the purchasing agent of the city per City Charter §3.04(11), utilize the following 
preferential procurement policy when considering responses to requests for bids, proposals or qualifications. 
 

Any preferential element will be second to a determination that offered goods and/or services are 
equal to specific, advertised criteria in a city bid request. The city may disqualify bidders based on 
documented concerns with past performance, quality control, responsiveness or other factors 
determined to be important in achieving best value. Once all criteria have been thoroughly reviewed 
the city may use preferred procurement with local vendors using the preference chart below. 
 

Project Cost Local Preference Allowance 

Less than $10,000 2% 

From $10,000 to $1,00,000 1% + $100 

Greater than $1,000,000 0.5% + $5,100 

 
The City reserves the right to modify preferences depending on the project, but no preferential 
amount shall exceed $50,000.  

 
This resolution was duly passed and approved by a majority of the City Council of the City of Caribou this 

____th day of ___________ 2020.  

 

________________________________  __________________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor    Attest: Jayne Farrin, City Clerk 

 

[City Seal]   

 

54



Introduced by Councilor _____________________  

on _________, ____ 2020 

 

ORDINANCE No. 01, 2020 Series 

City of Caribou 

County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 

 

An Ordinance to Amend the City Charter by Changing Budget Preparation Timeframes 

Short Title: An Ordinance to Change City Budget Preparation Timeframes 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Caribou is a Local Unit of Government under the State of Maine and is 

granted home rule authority under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §3001; and 

 

WHEREAS, City governance and budget procedures are outlined by the City Charter, which 

was instituted on February 23, 1967 and has been amended from time to time by a vote of the 

city’s residents as allowed under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the city’s budget preparation process should 

be modified to  

• enable future city councils to enact a budget within the fiscal years for which they are 

elected, 

• enable more time for the public to review capital and operational expense proposals, and 

• consider expense and capital budgets at the same time as income projections; and  

 

WHEREAS, any ordinance seeking to amend the charter must be approved by a vote of the 

citizens at the next general election.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of Maine, 

pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11 and Maine Revised 

Statutes, Title 30-A, §2104, presents for consideration of the voters, the following changes to the 

Charter. 

 

Section I: Charter Revisions 

 

A. Section 5.04 Submission of Budget and Budget Message is amended as follows (underlined 

text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

On or before the 15th of November of each year theThe City Manager shall submit to the City 

Council a draft and final draft of the detailed expense budget and capital expense budget for the 

ensuing fiscal year and an accompanying message explaining the expense budget and the capital 

expense budget. In addition, on or before the 30th of April of each year the City Manager shall submit 

to the City Council a final draft of the income budget for the ensuing year and an accompanying 

message explaining the income budget.budget reports for adoption as outlined in Section 5.06. On 

The City Manager shall provide a final budget report to the citizens on or before the 31st of May of 

55



each year the City Manager shall submit to the City Council a final complete budget for income, 

expense, capital expense budget and an accompanying message explaining the complete budget. 

B. Section 5.06 Budget, Paragraph (a)(3) referring to the expense budget timeline is amended as 

follows (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

(3) Timeline. The City Manager will provide an Expense Budget Report on or before the following 

dates: 

(i) On or before October November 1st:  of the preceding budget year, The the City Manager 

will have each City Department Head provide an initiala written detailed Expense Budget 

Report request for the ensuing year. 

(ii) On or before November 1stJanuary 15: The City Manager shall submit to the City Council a 

draft budget report detailing operation expenses for the fiscal year. 

(ii)(iii) On or before February 15: The City Manager will have each City Department Head 

present a written detailed Expense Budget Report to both the City Council and the City’s 

citizens in a public forum where both the City Council and Caribou’s citizens can ask 

questions and provide input to the City Manager and each Department Head. 

(iii)(iv) On or before November 15thMarch 1: The City Manager will provide the City’s final 

written detailed Expense Budget Report for the ensuing year to the City Council and 

Caribou’s citizens in a public hearing. 

(iv)(v) On or before December 15ththe third Monday in March: The City Council will hold a 

public hearing and vote on the City’s final detailed expense budget for the ensuing year. 

(v)(vi) On or before January 31st: The City Manager will provide the City’s written detailed 

Expense Budget Report for the new year to Caribou’s citizens for their review updating the 

report with final year end expenditures. 

 

C. Section 5.06 Budget, Paragraph (b)(3) referring to the capital budget timeline is amended as 

follows (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

(3)  Timeline. The City Manager will provide a Captial Expense Budget Report on or before the 

following dates: 

(i) On or before October 15thNovember 1st of the preceding budget year: The, the City Manager 

will have each City Department Head provide a written detailed capital expense budget report 

for the next five years to the Capital Improvements Committeethat outlines needs for 

buildings, grounds, infrastructure, equipment and vehicles. Such report shall also include 

anticipated expenditures of more than $50,000 for the next 10 years. 

(ii) On or before January 15: The City Manager shall submit to the City Council a capital budget 

report detailing capital needs for the fiscal year. 

(ii)(iii) On or before November February 151st: The City Manager will have each City 

Department Head present their written detailed Capital Expense Budget Report to both the 

City Council and Caribou citizens in a public forum where both the City Council and 

Caribou’s citizens can ask questions and provide input to the City Manager and each 

Department Head. 

(iii)(iv) On or before November March 15th: The City Manager will provide the City’s 

finalwritten detailed Capital Expense Budget Report for the ensuing year to the City Council 

and Caribou’s citizens in a public hearing. 

(iv)(v) On or before December 15ththe third Monday in March: The City Council will conduct a 

public hearing and vote on the City’s final detailed Capital Expense Budget for the ensuing 

year. 

 

56



D. Section 5.06 Budget, Paragraph (c)(3)(i) referring to the income budget timeline is amended 

as follows (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

(i) On or before April 30thJanuary 15: The City Manager will provide an estimated written a 

detailed Income Estimate Budget Report to the City Council for current year. 

 

E. Section 5.07, Paragraph (c)(i) referring to the Council action on Expense and Capital 

Expense Budgets is amended as follows (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

(i) City Council must adopt the expense and capital expense budgets on or before the 15th of 

December before the ensuingthird Monday of March each year. Until the Council adopts a budget 

for the fiscal year, the amounts appropriated for operation in the current fiscal year shall be 

deemed adopted as of the preceding fiscal year on a month to month basis with all items in it 

prorated accordingly. 

 

Section II. Severability 

If any part of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for 

any reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair of invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application 

thereof to other persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, 

subdivision, sentence or part of the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in 

the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered.  It is hereby declared to be the 

intent of the City Council that this section would have been adopted if such invalid section, 

provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a section or application had not been included. 

 

Section IV. Posting and Effective Date 

This ordinance, being introduced on ________________, 2020 and a public hearing being held 

on _________________, 2020 was duly passed by the City Council of the City of Caribou, 

Maine, this _____day of __________________ 2020. This ordinance shall become effective 

November 15th if passed by vote of the citizens during the November 2020 election.  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor   Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Jody Smith, Councilor    Nicole L. Cote, Councilor 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Hugh Kirkpatrick, Councilor   Doug Morrell, Councilor 

 

______________________________   

Joan Theriault, Councilor  

        Attest:______________________________ 

Jayne R. Farrin, City Clerk 

57



The following is a side by side comparison of the changes indicated in Ordinance 01-2020. 

Current Charter Proposed Language 

Sec. 5.04 Submission of Budget and Budget 

Message. 

On or before the 15th of November of each year the 

City Manager shall submit to the City 

Council a final draft of the detailed expense budget 

and capital expense budget for the ensuing fiscal 

year and an accompanying message explaining the 

expense budget and the capital expense budget. In 

addition, on or before the 30th of April of each year 

the City Manager shall submit to the City Council a 

final draft of the income budget for the ensuing year 

and an accompanying message explaining the 

income budget. On or before the 31st of May of 

each year the City Manager shall submit to the City 

Council a final complete budget for income, 

expense, capital expense budget and an 

accompanying message explaining the complete 

budget. 

Sec. 5.04 Submission of Budget and Budget 

Message. 

The City Manager shall submit to the City Council 

draft and final budget reports for adoption as outlined 

in Section 5.06. The Manager shall provide a final 

budget report to the citizens on or before the 31st of 

May. 

 

Sec. 5.06 Budget. Paragraph (a)(3) 

Budget Timeline 

(i) On or before October 1st: The City Manager 

will have each City Department Head provide 

an initial written detailed Expense Budget 

Report for the ensuing year. 

(ii) On or before November 1st: The City Manager 

will have each City Department Head present a 

written detailed Expense Budget Report to both 

the City Council and the City’s citizens in a 

public forum where both the City Council and 

Caribou’s citizens can ask questions and provide 

input to the City Manager and each Department 

Head. 

(iii) On or before November 15th: The City Manager 

will provide the City’s written detailed Expense 

Budget Report for the ensuing year to the City 

Council and Caribou’s citizens in a public 

hearing. 

(iv) On or before December 15th: The City Council 

will vote on the City’s final detailed expense 

budget for the ensuing year. 

(v) On or before January 31st: The City Manager 

will provide the City’s written detailed Expense 

Budget Report for the new year to Caribou’s 

citizens for their review updating the report with 

final year end expenditures. 

  

 

 

 

Sec. 5.06 Budget. Paragraph (a)(3) 

Budget Timeline 

(i) On or before November 1st of the preceding 

budget year, the City Manager will have each 

City Department Head provide a written detailed 

Expense Budget request for the ensuing year. 

(ii) On or before January 15: The City Manager shall 

submit to the City Council a draft budget report 

detailing operation expenses for the fiscal year. 

(iii) On or before February 15: The City Manager will 

have each City Department Head present a 

detailed Expense Budget Report in a public 

forum where both the City Council and Caribou’s 

citizens can ask questions and provide input to 

the City Manager and each Department Head. 

(iv) On or before March 1: The City Manager will 

provide the City’s final written detailed Expense 

Budget Report for the ensuing year to the City 

Council. 

(v) On or before the third Monday in March: The 

City Council will hold a public hearing and vote 

on the City’s final detailed Expense Budget for 

the ensuing year.  

58



Sec. 5.06 Budget. Paragraph (b)(3) 

Capital Expense Budget Timeline 

(i) On or before October 15th: The City Manager 

will have each City Department Head provide a 

written detailed capital expense budget report 

for the next five years to the Capital 

Improvements Committee. 

(ii) On or before November 1st: The City Manager 

will have each City Department Head present 

their written detailed Capital Expense Budget 

Report to both the City Council and Caribou 

citizens in a public forum where both the City 

Council and Caribou’s citizens can ask 

questions and provide input to the City Manager 

and each Department Head. 

(iii) On or before November 15th: The City Manager 

will provide the City’s written detailed Capital 

Expense Budget Report for the ensuing year to 

the City Council and Caribou’s citizens in a 

public hearing. 

(iv) On or before December 15th: The City Council 

will vote on the City’s final detailed Capital 

Expense Budget for the ensuing year. 

Sec. 5.06 Budget. Paragraph (b)(3) 

Capital Expense Budget Timeline 

(i) On or before November 1st of the preceding 

budget year, the City Manager will have each 

City Department Head provide a written detailed 

capital expense report for the next five years that 

outlines needs for buildings, grounds, 

infrastructure, equipment and vehicles. Such 

report shall also include anticipated expenditures 

of more than $50,000 for the next 10 years. 

(ii) On or before January 15: The City Manager shall 

submit to the City Council a Capital budget 

report detailing capital needs for the fiscal year. 

(iii) On or before February 15: The City Manager will 

have each City Department Head present their 

written detailed capital expense report in a public 

forum where both the City Council and Caribou’s 

citizens can ask questions and provide input to 

the City Manager and each Department Head. 

(iv) On or before March 1: The City Manager will 

provide the City’s final detailed Capital Expense 

Budget Report for the ensuing year to the City 

Council. 

(v) On or before the third Monday in March: The 

City Council will conduct a public hearing and 

vote on the City’s final detailed Capital Expense 

Budget for the ensuing year. 

Sec. 5.06 Budget. Paragraph (c)(3) 

Income Budget Timeline 

(i) On or before April 30th: The City Manager will 

provide an estimated written detailed Income 

Budget Report for current year. 

 

Sec. 5.06 Budget. Paragraph (c)(3) 

Income Budget Timeline 

(i) On or before January 15: The City Manager will 

provide a detailed Income Estimate Report to the 

City Council for the current year.  

Sec. 5.07(c) Council Action on Expense and 

Capital Expense Budget. 

City Council must adopt the expense and capital 

expense budgets on or before the 15th of December 

before the ensuing year. 

Sec. 5.07(c) Council Action on Expense and 

Capital Expense Budget. 

City Council must adopt the expense and capital 

expense budgets on or before the third Monday of 

March each year. Until the Council adopts a budget 

for the fiscal year, the amounts appropriated for 

operation in the current fiscal year shall be deemed 

adopted as of the preceding fiscal year on a month to 

month basis with all items in it prorated accordingly. 

 

59



Introduced by Councilor _____________________  

on _________, ____ 2020 

 

ORDINANCE No. 02, 2020 Series 

City of Caribou 

County of Aroostook 

State of Maine 

 

An Ordinance to Amend the City Charter to Allow the Council to Increase the Expense Budget After 

Adoption in a Fiscal Year 

Short Title: An Ordinance to Allow the City Council to Increase the Expense Budget after Adoption. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Caribou is a Local Unit of Government under the State of Maine and is 

granted home rule authority under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, §3001; and 

 

WHEREAS, City governance and budget procedures are outlined by the City Charter, which 

was instituted on February 23, 1967 and has been amended from time to time by a vote of the 

city’s residents as allowed under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that elected officials should be able to increase 

total budget expenditures to match revenues in the same fiscal year.  

 

WHEREAS, any ordinance seeking to amend the charter must be approved by a vote of the 

citizens at the next general election.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of Caribou, County of Aroostook, State of Maine, 

pursuant to the requirements of the City of Caribou Charter, Section 2.11 and Maine Revised 

Statutes, Title 30-A, §2104, presents for consideration of the voters, the following changes to the 

Charter. 

 

Section I: Charter Revisions 

 

A. Section 5.06(d) regarding finalizing of the city Budget is amended as follows (underlined text 

is added, stricken text is deleted) 

 

The City Manager will finalize the complete City Budget for the current year including all 

three elements: expense, capital expense, and income on or before the 31st of May each year. 

The City Council has the opportunity to reduce the expense or capital expense budget if 

needed based on the current income budget but cannot increase the expense or capital 

expense budget.can amend the capital and expense budgets after adoption, in accordance 

with Section 5.09. 

 

B. Section 5.09 Budget, Paragraph (a) referring to budget amendments after adoption is 

amended as follows (underlined text is added, stricken text is deleted) 

60



If during the fiscal year the Manager certifies that there are available revenues in excess of 

those estimated in the budget, the Council may, by ordinance, make supplemental 

appropriations up to the amount of such excess. these Any unappropriated funds shall be 

used for next year’s budget, except in situations outlined in section 5.09(b). 

 

Section II. Severability 

If any part of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, for 

any reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair of invalidate the remainder of this ordinance or the application 

thereof to other persons and circumstances, but shall be confined to its operation to the section, 

subdivision, sentence or part of the section and the persons and circumstances directly involved in 

the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered.  It is hereby declared to be the 

intent of the City Council that this section would have been adopted if such invalid section, 

provisions, subdivision, sentence or part of a section or application had not been included. 

 

Section IV. Posting and Effective Date 

This ordinance, being introduced on ________________, 2020 and a public hearing being held 

on _________________, 2020 was duly passed by the City Council of the City of Caribou, 

Maine, this _____day of __________________ 2020. This ordinance shall become effective 

November 15th if passed by vote of the citizens during the November 2020 election.  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

R. Mark Goughan, Mayor   Thomas Ayer, Deputy Mayor  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Jody Smith, Councilor    Nicole L. Cote, Councilor 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Hugh Kirkpatrick, Councilor   Doug Morrell, Councilor 

 

______________________________   

Joan Theriault, Councilor  

        Attest:______________________________ 

Jayne R. Farrin, City Clerk 

61



    TAX   ASSESSMENT / BUILDING PERMIT   OFFICE 
CARIBOU,  MAINE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To:   City Manager Dennis Marker & Caribou City Council 
From:   Penny Thompson, Tax Assessor / Chief Building Official 
Date:   May 11, 2020 
Re:   History of the Maine Resident Homestead Property Tax Exemption 
 
History:  Under Article IV, Part 3 §23 of the Maine Constitution, the state is required 
to reimburse each municipality for 50% of the property tax revenue loss resulting from the 
implementation of statutory property tax exemptions or credits enacted after April 1, 1978. 
Reimbursement claims are submitted to the state on the Municipal Valuation Return which 
must be submitted to the State by November 1 each year.  
 
The first year that Maine residents received a benefit from the Maine Resident Homestead 
Property Tax Exemption program was 1998. In the first years of the program, the benefit 
amount was $7,000 of value and the State of Maine reimbursed the City for 100% of the 
revenue lost by implementing the program. Beginning in the 2005 tax year, the state increased 
the Homestead amount to $13,000 with a 50% reimbursement amount from State of Maine. 
In recent years there have been changes to both the amount of the exemption and the percent 
of reimbursement. NOTE: All exemptions must be factored by the city’s certified ratio.  
 
In 2019, the City of Caribou granted 2,028 homestead exemptions of $20,000 and there were 
65 partial exemptions granted i.e. the value of the homestead property was less than $20,000 
and therefore was fully exempted by the homestead exemption. The total exempt value was 
$41,196,600. The 2019 reimbursement rate was 62.5% and the reimbursement amount was 
$631,496.58. 
 
Discussion:  Typically, all exemption applications are due by April 1 of the tax year. 
Having a set deadline for exemption applications ensures that the department can trust that 
no further exemptions will be received prior to setting values. However, the Governor has 
changed the deadline for this year so more exemption applications could be received up to 
and including the date of commitment. 
 
As of this writing, there are 2122 approved homestead exemptions: 2,038 homestead 
exemptions of $25,000 and there are 84 partial exemptions granted. The total exempt value 
is currently $52,024,600. The 2020 reimbursement rate is 70%. At the 2019 tax rate of .02455, 
the amount of reimbursement would be $894,042.75. 
 
Next Steps:  In my memo dated April 2, 2020 regarding the extension of deadlines for 
exemption applications, I reported the following: the Executive Order extends the April 1, 2020 
deadline to either the commitment date of the municipality or 30 days after the termination of 
the declared emergency, whichever occurs first.  On April 14, 2020 the Governor extended the 
State of Civil Emergency for an additional thirty days.  
 
Mr. Marker has prepared some illustrations about the history of homestead exemptions. 

25 High Street 
Caribou ME 04736 

(207) 493 – 3324 X 3 
FAX: 498-3954 

pthompson@cariboumaine.org 

62



 $
-

 $
5

,0
0

0

 $
1

0
,0

0
0

 $
1

5
,0

0
0

 $
2

0
,0

0
0

 $
2

5
,0

0
0

1
9

9
7

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

 o
f 

H
o

m
es

te
ad

 C
re

d
it

 a
n

d
 T

ax
es

 o
n

 $
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 V

al
u

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 s
in

ce
 1

9
9

7

H
o

m
es

te
ad

 E
xe

m
p

ti
o

n
Ta

xe
s 

o
n

 $
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 V

al
u

at
io

n

Ta
xe

s 
in

 1
9

9
7

 =
 $

2
,0

0
0

 
(m

il 
ra

te
 .0

2
0

0
0

)

Ta
xe

s 
in

 2
0

2
0

 =
 $

1
,8

4
1

 
(A

ss
u

m
es

 .0
2

4
5

5
 m

il 
ra

te
)

63



Ta
x 

Ye
ar

 D
e

cl
ar

e
d

 

H
o

m
e

st
e

ad
 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

C
it

y 

C
e

rt
if

ie
d

 

R
at

io

 A
ct

u
al

 

H
o

m
e

st
e

ad
 

C
re

d
it

 
Ta

x 
R

at
e

V
al

u
e

 o
f 

C
re

d
it

Ta
x

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 C
re

d
it

 

Sa
vi

n
gs

 if
 k

e
p

t 

p
ri

o
r 

yr
 M

il
 

A
ct

u
al

 S
av

in
gs

 

fr
o

m
 P

ri
o

r 
Ye

ar

D
if

fe
re

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 a
n

d
 

A
ct

u
al

 B
e

n
e

fi
t

19
97

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

10
0%

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

20
.0

0
0

 $
   

 2
,0

00
.0

0 

19
98

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

19
.7

5
13

8.
25

$ 
   

   
1,

83
6.

75
$ 

   
14

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

3.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
99

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

21
.0

0
14

7.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

95
3.

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
16

.2
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

16
.2

5)
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
00

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

21
.2

5
14

8.
75

$ 
   

   
1,

97
6.

25
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
3.

25
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(2
3.

25
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
01

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

22
.5

0
15

7.
50

$ 
   

   
2,

09
2.

50
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
16

.2
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

16
.2

5)
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
02

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

22
.5

2
15

7.
64

$ 
   

   
2,

09
4.

36
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
.8

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
.8

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
03

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

23
.2

5
16

2.
75

$ 
   

   
2,

16
2.

25
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
7.

89
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(6
7.

89
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
04

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

23
.5

0
16

4.
50

$ 
   

   
2,

18
5.

50
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
3.

25
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(2
3.

25
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
05

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

98
%

12
,8

00
$ 

   
   

25
.5

0
32

6.
40

$ 
   

   
2,

22
3.

60
$ 

   
13

6.
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

8.
10

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(1

74
.4

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
06

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

24
.5

0
31

8.
50

$ 
   

   
2,

13
1.

50
$ 

   
5.

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

92
.1

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

87
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
07

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

89
%

11
,5

00
$ 

   
   

24
.0

0
27

6.
00

$ 
   

   
2,

12
4.

00
$ 

   
(3

6.
75

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
44

.2
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 

20
08

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

89
%

11
,5

00
$ 

   
   

24
.0

0
27

6.
00

$ 
   

   
2,

12
4.

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
09

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

89
%

11
,5

00
$ 

   
   

24
.0

0
27

6.
00

$ 
   

   
2,

12
4.

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
10

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

85
%

8,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
24

.1
0

20
4.

85
$ 

   
   

2,
20

5.
15

$ 
   

(7
2.

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(8
1.

15
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(9
.1

5)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
11

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

83
%

8,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
26

.1
0

21
6.

63
$ 

   
   

2,
39

3.
37

$ 
   

(4
.8

2)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

88
.2

2)
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
83

.4
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   

20
12

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

19
.3

0
19

3.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

73
7.

00
$ 

   
44

.3
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
6.

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
61

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

20
13

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

20
.5

0
20

5.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

84
5.

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
08

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

08
.0

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
14

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

22
.3

0
22

3.
00

$ 
   

   
2,

00
7.

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
62

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

62
.0

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
15

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

22
.4

6
22

4.
60

$ 
   

   
2,

02
1.

40
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
4.

40
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(1
4.

40
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
16

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

22
.9

0
34

3.
50

$ 
   

   
1,

94
6.

50
$ 

   
11

2.
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
74

.9
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

7.
40

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

20
17

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

23
.9

0
47

8.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

91
2.

00
$ 

   
11

4.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
34

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(8

0.
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

20
18

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

23
.7

0
47

4.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

89
6.

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
19

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

24
.5

5
49

1.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

96
4.

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
8.

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(6
8.

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
20

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

10
0%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

24
.5

5
61

3.
75

$ 
   

   
1,

84
1.

25
$ 

   
12

2.
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

2.
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

$1
00

K
 H

o
m

e

*A
ss

u
m

es
 m

il 
ra

te
 r

em
ai

n
s 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

 2
0

2
0

.

64



65



66



67



CFAD MONTHLY REPORT 
April 2020 

                 Fire Calls_6__ Ambulance Calls_131__ Cancelled Calls___ = Total Calls_137____ 
                                                                                                             

 
                                            See Attached Breakdowns 

        
-Alarms for Fires (33)  2   - ALS Calls  67 
-Alarms for Rescues (66)    - BLS Calls  64     
-Silent Alarms   4   - Amb Calls cancelled: 0         
Total Hours Pumped  4.5 hrs.   - No Transport   32        
Gallons of Water Used 20,000              -Long Distance Transfers   14 
Amt. of Hose used:  950’   - Calls Turned Over:  2 = $4898.00   
Ladders Used (in Feet):   100’     
(75’Aerial)________     Total Out of Town Calls  37  
Thermal Imaging Camera Used: 3  
Gas Meter Used:  1     Est. Fire Loss, Caribou  $55,000      
Rescue Sled & Snowmobile:   Est. Fire Loss, out of City     
Rescue Boat:      Total Est. Fire Loss    $55,000   
Jaws Used:       
       Total Maint. Hours       9hrs. 
Miles Traveled by All Units 6524   Total Training Hours    30mhrs.                                 
                                                               Color Guard Trng/Ceremonies 
                
MUTUAL AID TO:     MUTUAL AID FROM: 
Presque Isle Fire Dept.    Presque Isle Fire Dept. 1         
Fort Fairfield Fire Dept.    Fort Fairfield Fire Dept.           
Limestone Fire Dept..   1     Limestone Fire Dept.  1            
Washburn Fire Dept.             Washburn Fire Dept.           
Stockholm Fire Dept. .    Stockholm fire Dept.   
North Lakes Fire Dept.    North Lakes Fire Dept. 
Crown Ambulance     Crown Ambulance 
Van Buren Ambulance                                     Life Flight                               3 
       
 
Out of City Fire and/or Ambulance Responses 
LOCATION  #of Amb. Responses    # Of Fires Responses Man Hrs.  
Woodland  2     
New Sweden  2      1                                          112.58  
Connor  5                                  
Perham                        2 
Stockholm     
Westmanland   
Washburn  
Wade 
Madawaska Lake       1  
Madawaska                  
Limestone                  25                                     1                                        25.98 
       ___________________________________ 
        Scott Susi, Chief 
        Caribou Fire and Ambulance 
 

68



BREAKDOWN OF FIRES 
For April 2020 

 
Situation Found # Of Incidents Fire Casualties Est. Property 

Damage 
1. Private Dwellings (111) 
Mobile Homes (121)                                  

1  $55,000 

2. Apartments (3 or more) (111) 
 

   

3. Hotels & Motels (111) 
    

   

4. Dormitories & Boarding Homes 
    (111) 

   

5. Public Assembly (Church,  
    Restaurant) (111) 

   

6. Schools (111) 
 

   

7. Institutions (Hospitals, Jails, 
    Nursing Homes) (111) 

   

8. Stores, Offices (111) 
 

   

9. Industry, Utility, Defense (111) 
 

   

10. Storage (111) 
 

   

11. Vacant Buildings or being Built 
       (111) 

   

12. Fires outside structure w/value 
      (crops, timber, etc.)  (171) 

   

13. Fires Highway Vehicles (131) 
 

   

14. Other Vehicles (planes, trains, 
      etc.) (132)  Backhoe 

1   

15. Fires in brush, grass w/no value 
      (140) 

   

 
Other Incidents 
16. Haz-Mat (400)  
17. False Calls (740)  
18. Mutual Aid Calls (571) 1 
19. Aid to Ambulance (10-55's) (322)  
20. Aid to Police (551)  
21. Investigation (Smoke, CO2 or Alarm) 
(730)                                                                

(smoke )     (Alarm ) 
1                    2 

22. Service Calls (500)  
23. Ambulance Calls (300) 131 
Cancelled 
Fire/Rescue    6 
Total Calls for the Month: __137 
 
 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78


	efield5_Sig: 
	efield7_Ttl: 
	efield4_DateTime: 
	efield10_Sig: 
	efield9_DateTime: 
	efield8_N: 
	efield6_N: 


